
Copyright © CR Archaeology



Copyright © CR Archaeology



Copyright © CR Archaeology



Copyright © CR Archaeology



Copyright © CR Archaeology



0 Gwynedd 

• Development Boundary 

• Property Boundary 

• Scheduled Ancient Monument Boundary 

GreatOrmes 
Pen-y-Goga 

N/G 

$ 

Figure 1. Site Location Map - Source: OS Open Data 
(Contains Ordnance Smvey data © Crown copyright and database right 2014) 
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5.0 Historical Background

A search was conducted of the Gwynedd Historic Environment Record (HER) and this together

with  a  search  of  the  RCAHMW  records  was  used  to  ascertain  as  to  whether  any  material

specifically related to The Gannock Park development. Searches were also carried out at the Conwy

and Caernarfon Archives and unless otherwise stated all  archive reference numbers refer to the

material held in the Conwy Archives.

Early archaeological evidence appears to have been centred around the hills that overlook Deganwy

and the Conwy estuary. Unless otherwise stated all sites commented on are within a 500m radius of

the development.

5.1.1 Mesolithic

No direct evidence of Mesolithic activity is recorded within the aforementioned 500m search area.

5.1.2 Neolithic

Three Neolithic polished stone axes have been found within the defined search area. The first (Prn

2831) was recovered from Vardre mountain which overlooks Deganwy. A second (Prn 4581) was

found at Plas Mariandir, at an inland site to the east. An incomplete axe (Prn 5182) was recovered

from the fields leading up to the medieval castle.

5.1.3 Bronze Age

A large and impressive hoard of bronze age axes  (Prn 2815) was recovered from shore of the

Conwy estuary. It is unclear exactly how many were recovered but is is possible that over twenty

were originally in the hoard which has since become dispersed.

A hoard of bronze celts (axes) are discussed in the 1941 Archaeologia Cambrensis 'miscellanea'

section (Anon 1941: 205). These axes where recovered on the inland side of Deganwy castle in the

Gloddaeth area.

5.1.4 Iron Age

No direct evidence of Iron age activity is recorded within the search area and a suggested settlement

site (Prn 2837) is discussed in the Romano-British section. The upper half of a beehive quern (Prn

5553) was handed in the local archaeological trust in the late 80's and this object is likely to date

from a Iron Age or Romano-British period.
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The first  recorded castle was built  by the Norman Lord Robert  of Rhuddlan around AD 1080.

Robert held the castle and the surrounding lands until 1093 when he was killed in a raid by Welsh

rebels. The land then passed into the ownership of  Earl Hugh of Chester (Osborne 2000: 5-6). The

land returned to Welsh hands when Gruffydd ap Cynan rose to power in 1094 (Jones 2010). The

area continued to be held by the Welsh and by AD 1200 the land had been inherited by Llywelyn ap

Iorwerth (RCAHMW 1936: 152). Llywelyn destroyed the castle and lands as part of a scorched

earth policy in advance of King Johns invasion of 1211 (Maund 2004: 120). 

Following the death of  Llywelyn ap Iorwerth in 1240 his heirs struggled to hold onto his gains and

by 1241-2 Deganwy Castle and lands where once more held by the English. King Henry III took

control  of  the  site  but  it  has  been  suggested  that  the  castle  was  completely  destroyed  before

returning to English control (Lynch 2001: 146). 

It is thought that in 1244 Henry III began to rebuild the castle and it is the remains of this phase of

construction which survive to the present day (Nprn 85282/ Prn 2814). Henry III also established

the borough of Deganwy in 1248 (Prn 30307). During this period the grandson of  Llywelyn ap

Iorwerth, Llywelyn ap Gruffudd, was rising to power and in 1257 he led an attack on the castle. In

1263 he made large gains taking Diserth and Deganwy Castle from the Crown (Maund 2004: 120-

131). It is thought that Llywelyn ap Gruffudd destroyed the castle to base himself on the west side

of the Conwy Estuary where he had a llys (Nprn 303129) which was later incorporated into the

Edwardian walls (Nprn 95280) which encircle the town (White 1995). Conwy and the associated

archaeological remains do not fall with the search radius and are included to give context and to

explain the decline of Deganwy.

After the the conquest of North Wales by Edward I settlement and power was refocused to the west

of the river Conwy. Conwy Castle (Nprn 121) was built and a new borough was formed. Lewis

discussed the formation of a market at Deganwy (Prn 30322) in 1284 (1912: 194). 

A 2009 GAT study identified a large number of features associated with the undeveloped areas

around  the  Medieval  castle  which  where  attributed  a  Medieval  date.  These  features  are:  five

possible farmsteads (Prn's 2836, 2838, 30305, 30306, 30308), a roadway to Degannwy castle (Prn

30304), four linear features (Prn 303013) and a quarry to the west of the castle (Prn 30314). One of

the aforementioned linear features is of particular importance as it  extends from the base of the

western crag to near the eastern property boundary of Plas Gwyn (a site walkover showed it stopped
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approximately 5-6m from the boundary). The position and alignment of this  feature indicate that

this earthwork may have previously continued into the site and ran beneath the existing dwelling. 

A surviving medieval field system has been identified to the south of Deganwy castle (Prn 30309)

and a small rectangular platform near Deganwy Castle (Prn 5777) which could possibly be given a

medieval date.

Four sherds of 13th-14th century  pottery were uncovered on the Vardre mountain (Prn 24080) and

are thought to have all come from the same vessel.

5.1.8 Post-Medieval – General Background

During the early part of this period the area around Deganwy was primarily agricultural in character

with a pattern of dispersed farmsteads. This continued into the nineteenth century and the 1841

census listings of the professions of the parish occupants recorded in the census reflected this. In

addition to agricultural work a number of the men were employed in mining (at either the copper

mines on the Great Orme or the antimony mine near Bwlch) and fishing (Richards 2010: 11). 

This was to change dramatically in the mid nineteenth century with the advent of the railway and

the  raise  to  prominence of  Llandudno as  a  holiday location.  Deganwy was on the  mainline to

Llandudno and by 1866 had its own train station. Land associated with the Deganwy and other

estates was prime building land and was parcelled off for the erection of villas and houses from the

early 1870's onwards and by the early twentieth century much of the area was residential (Richards

2010: 21-23).

The railway also brought with it an increase in employment and associated trade opportunities and

goods could now be moved more easily to new markets leading to an increase in quarrying/ timber

production.  Mussel  fishing  also  increased  as  perishable  foodstuffs  could  be  transported  more

rapidly to markets (Richards 2010: 21-23).
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Figure 3. 1841 Tithe Map Extract 

Figure 4. 1892 Map from Deganwy Estate Sale Catalogue 

Figure 5. 1903 Map from Deganwy Estate Sale Catalogue 
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Figure 6. 1889 First 
Edition Ordnance 

Survey Map 

Figure 7. 1900 
Edition Ordnance 

Survey Map 

Figure 8. 1937 
Edition Ordnance 

Survey Map 
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Stripped Area 

Existing Garage 

Figure 9. Stripped Area at Plas Gwyn, Gannock Park 
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